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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Adroit Inspection Services Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Adroit Inspection Services Private Limited (“the
Company™). which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2023. the Statement of Profit and | oss,
including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income. the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended. and notes 1o the financial statements. including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information,

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us. the aforesaid
linancial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“'the Act™) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India. of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31. 2023. its profit including other
comprehensive income. its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs). as
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements® seetion of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the *Code of Ethics” issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder. and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
financial statements,

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board of Director's report. but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
lorm of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements. our responsibility is to read the other information
and. in doing so. consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 1. based
on the work we have performed. we conclude that there is a material misstatement ol this other information.,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements
The Company”s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with

respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the [inagcial
position. financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and chanees i equity
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ol the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India. including the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules. 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for saleguarding of the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities: selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies: making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the
design. implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls. that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records. relevant to the preparation
and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement. whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. disclosing. as applicable. matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations. or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are 10 obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error. and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
ouropinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance. but is not a cuarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if. individually or in the aggregate. they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these [inancial statements.

As part ol an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

a)  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements. whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error. as fraud may involve
collusion. forgery. intentional omissions. misrepresentations. or the override of internal control.

b)  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act. we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating clffectiveness of such controls.

¢)  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

d)  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and.
based on the audit evidence obtained. whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Companys ability to continue as a going concern. I
we conelude that a material uncertainty exists. we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or. if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company lo cease to continue as a going
concern.

¢) Evaluate the overall presentation. structure and content of the lnancial statements. including the
disclosures. and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves lair presentation.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding. among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings. including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
cthical requirements regarding independence. and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence. and where applicable. related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

I As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order. 2020 (“the Order™), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act. we give in the
“Annexure |7 a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act. we report that:

(a)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit:

(b) In our opinion. proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so lar

(c)

(d)

(e)

(n

(h)

as it appears from our examination of those books:

The Balance Sheet. the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income. the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account:

In our opinion. the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act. read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules. 2015, as
amended:

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31. 2023 taken
on record by the Board of Directors. none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31. 2023 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act:

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls. refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure 27 to this report:

According to the information and explanations given by the management. we report that
remunerations of the Director for the year ended 31 March 2023 is in excess of the limits a pplicable
under section 197 ol the Act. read with Schedule thereto. by Rs 76.10 lacs. however the Company
has obtained approval of the sharcholders in the annual general meeting for the remuneration paid
to the directors:

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
ol the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules. 2014. as amended in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
financial statements — Reler Note 37 to the financial statements:
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i The Company did not have any long-term contracts ncluding derivative contracts for which

there were any material foreseeable losses:

il There were no amounts which were required 1o be transferred to the Investor Education and

Protection Fund by the Company.

iv.a) The management has represented that. to the best of its know ledge and beliel. other than
as disclosed in the note 30 to the financial statements. no funds have been ad vanced or loaned
or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries™). with the understanding. whether recorded in w riting or otherwise. that the
Intermediary shall. whether. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee. security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate

Beneliciaries:

b) The management has represented that. to the best of its knowledge and beliel. other than as
disclosed in the note 30 to the financial statements. no funds have been received by the
Company from any persons or entities. including foreign entities (“Funding Parties™). with the
understanding. whether recorded in writing or otherwise. that the Company shall. whether.
directly or indireetly. lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any

guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiarics: and

¢) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances. nothing has come to our notice that has caused us 1o be
that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

V.. Nodividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

vi.  As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules. 2014 is applicable for the

Company only w.e.l. April 1. 2023, reporting under this clause is not applicable.

For S.R. Batliboi & Asgociates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAL Firm Registratj

mber: 101049W/E300004

P njay Bachchani

Partner

Membership Number: 400419
UDIN: 234004 19BGTGPV 3094

Place of Signature: Gurugram. | larvana
Date: 25 April 2023
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Annexure I referred to in paragraph 1 of report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Re: Adroit Inspection Services Private Limited (‘the Com pany’)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and
belief, we state that:

(1)

(ii)

(iii)

(a)A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars. including
quantitative details and situation of Property. Plant and LEquipment,

(a)(B) The Company has maintained proper records show ing full particulars of intangibles assets.

(b) Property. Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management during the
year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(¢) There is no immovable property (other than propertics where the Company is the lessee and
the lease agreements are duly exccuted in favour of the lessee). held by the Company and
accordingly. the requirement to report on clause 3(i)(¢) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property. Plant and Equipment (including Right of use
ssets) or intangible assets during the year ended March 31. 2023,

(¢) There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami
property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act. 1988 and rules made
thereunder.

(a) The Company’s business does not require maintenance of inventories and. accordingly. the
requirement to report on clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in
aggregate from banks or financial institutions during any point of time of the year on the basis ol
seeurity of current assets. Accordingly. the requirement to report on clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(a) During the year the Company has provided loans. to companies. firms. or any other parties as
follows:

| .bans |

Particulars (Amount in Lakhs)

Aggregate amount granted/ provided during the year

- Others(Employee Loans) Nil
Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect of above
Cises
0.41
- Others (Employee Loans)
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(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vil)

(b) During the year the Company has not made investments. provided guarantees. provided
security and granted advances in the nature of loans to companies. firms. Limited Liability
Partnerships. Accordingly. the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(¢) The Company has not granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies. firms.
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly. the requirement to report on
clause 3(iii)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) The Company has not granted loans or advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms.
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly. the requirement to report on
clause 3(iin)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. However, There are no amounts of
loans granted to employees which are overdue for more than ninety days.

(e) There were no loans or advance in the nature of loan granted to companies. firms. Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly. the requirement to report on clause
3(iti)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. However. There were no loans granted to
employees which was fallen due during the year. that have been renewed or extended or fresh
loans granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given to the same parties

(1) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans. either repayable on
demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment to companies. firms. Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly. the requirement to report on clause
310 of the Order is not applicable 1o the Company.

There are no loans. investments. guarantees. and security in respect of which provisions of
sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act. 2013 are applicable and accordingly. the requirement
to report on clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which
are deemed 1o be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the
rules made thereunder. to the extent applicable. Accordingly. the requirement to report on clause
3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Central Government has not specified the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1)
of the Companies Act. 2013. for the services of the Company.

(a) The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues
including goods and services tax. provident fund, employees™ state insurance. income-tax. sales-
tax. service tax. duty of customs. duty of excise. value added tax. cess and other statutory dues
applicable to it. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on audit
procedures performed by us. no undisputed amounts payable in respect of these statutory dues
were outstanding. at the year end. for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable.
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(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(b) The dues of goods and services tax. provident fund. employees® state insurance. income-tax.
sales-tax. service tax. duty of custom. duty of excise. value added tax. cess. and other statutory
dues have not been deposited on account of any dispute. are as follows:

Ar'nnunl Amount | Period to
Name of Nature of }ct':lu Paid which the Forum where
Status dues (II::l b (Rs. in amount dispute is pending
- Lacs) relates
Lacs)

Income tax TDS 0.13 - 'Y 2017-18 CIT (Appeals)
Act. 1961
Income tax TDS 0.26 - FY 2018-19 CIT (Appeals)
Act, 1961
Income tax TDS 0.26 - FY 2019-20 CIT (Appeals)
Act. 1961

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction. previously unrecorded in the
books ol account. in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the
year. Accordingly. the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(a) Loans amounting o Rs. 217.93 lakhs as of March 31. 2023 are repayable on demand and terms
and conditions for payment of interest thereon have not been stipulated. Such loans and interest
thereon have not been demanded for repayment during the relevant financial year. The Company
has not defaulted in payment of interest thercon to any lender.

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

(¢) The Company did not have any term loans outstanding during the year henee. the requirement
to report on clause (ix)(c) ol the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) On an overall examination ol the linancial statements of the Company. no funds raised on
short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(¢) The Company does not have any subsidiary. associate or joint venture. Accordingly. the
requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(e) and 3(ix)(N) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company

(a) The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer / further
public offer (including debt instruments) hence. the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares /fully or
partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence. the
requirement to report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.,
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(xi)

(xii)

(xili)

(xivV)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(xVill)

(a) No [raud by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the
year,

(b) During the year. no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
has been filed by us in Form ADT - 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules. 2014 with the Central Government.

(¢) As represented to us by the management. there are no whistle blower complaints received by
the Company during the year.

'he Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act. 2013.
Therefore. the requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(a). (b) and (¢) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

Fransactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies
Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements. as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(a) The Company has implemented internal audit system on a voluntary basis which is
commensurate with the size ot the Company and nature of its business though it is not required to
have an internal audit system under Section 138 of the Companies Act. 2013

(b) The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report. for the period
under audit have been considered by us.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(a) The provisions of section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act. 1934 (2 of 1934) are not
applicable to the Company. Accordingly. the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(a) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities
without obtained a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per
the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

(¢) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by Reserve
Bank of India. Accordingly. the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(d) There is no Core Investment Company as a part of the Group. hence. the requirement to report
on clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable 1o the Company.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year and in the immediately
preceding financial year,

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly
requirement o report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(xix)

(xx)

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 29 to the linancial statements. ageing and
expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of linancial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statements. our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions.
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists
as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at
the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date. We. however. state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report
and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilitics lalling due within a period
of one year from the balance sheet date. will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall
due.

The Company is not required to spend on corporate social responsibility activities under the
provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act. 2013. Therefore. the requirement to report under
clause xx(a) and xx(b) of the Order are not applicable to the Com pany

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAL firm registratiop/mumber: 101049W/E300004

Membership Number: 400419
UDIN: 234004 19BGTGPV3094

Place of Signature: Gurugram. lHaryana
Date: 25 April 2023
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ADROIT INSPECTION SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Adroit
Inspection Services Private Limited (“the Company™) as of 31 March 2023 in conjunction with our
audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI™).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to the Com pany’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”)
and the Standards on Auditing, as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements, assessing the
risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
Judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements,

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to these Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process desi gned to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial controls with refezence to financial statements includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the mgistefaeges of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
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company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial Statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material

because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate,

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

For S.R. Batliboi & &s
Chartered Accountan

Membership Number: 400419
UDIN: 23400419BGTGPV3094

Place of Signature: Gurugram, Haryana
Date: 25 April 2023



Adroit Inspection Services Private Limited
Bulance Sheet as at 31 March 2023
CIN: U93000DL2016PTC292367

(% in Lacs)
Asat
i 31 March2023 31 March 2022
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 30.80 41.22
Other intangible assets 4 0.25 0.59
Right-of-use assets 4 146.18 165.87
Financial assets
- Other financial assets 7 223 3.08
Deferred tax assets (net) 23 39.72 54.59
Non current tax assets (net) 156.39 118.50
Other non-current assets 8 1.85 3.34
Total non-current assets 377.42 387.19
Current assets
Financial assets
- Trade receivables 5 307.68 336.54
- Cash and cash equivalents 6 52.85 46.72
- Other financial assats 7 164,08 180.99
Other current assets 8 235.79 414.35
Total current assets 760.40 978.60
Total assets 1,137.82 1,365.79
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 9 21.70 21.70
Other equity 10
- Retained earnings 265.66 311.79
- Other reserves 97.80 101.05
Total equity 385.16 434.54
Nan-current linbilities
Financial liabilities
- Lease liabilities 27 147.21 159,73
Netemployee defined benefit linbilities 14 28.16 19.35
Total non-current linbilities 175.37 179.08
Current linbilities
Financial liabilities
- Barrowings 11 217.93 29201
- Lease liabilities 27 12.52 11.40
- Trade payables 12
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 34.98 -
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 260.92 35144
- Other financial liabilities 13 17.54 46,19
Net employee defined benefit liabilities 14 18.69 1238
Other current liabilities 15 14.71 3875
Total current liabilitics 577.29 75217
Total equity and liabilities 1,137.82 1,365.79

Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an {ntegral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date

Place: Gurugram
Date : 25 April 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Adroit Inspection Services Private Limited

t}O“l

Bhaskar Ghgsh Kalyan Kumtar Mallz
Director Director

DIN: DB186442 DIN: 08560622

Place: Delhi

Date 1 25 April 2023



Adroit Inspection Services Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2023
CIN: 193000D L2 6PTC292367

( in Lacs)
Notes For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Income
Revenue [fom contracts with customers 16 2,075.67 1,660.32
Other income 17 313.03 351.21
Total Income 2,388.70 2,011.53
Expenses
Employee benefits expense 18 788.63 768,89
Depreciation and amortisation expense 19 39.87 3947
Finance costs 20 3R 35 37.15
Other expenses 21 1,493.05 1,132.95
Tuotal expenses 2,359.90 1,978.46
Profit before tax 28.80 33.07
Tax expense: 22
Current lux - 22,77
Income tax adjustment relating to earlier years 130 16.91)
Deferred tax expenses 14.87 (12.99
Total tax expense 16,17 2.87
Profit for the vear 12.63 30.20
Other comprehensive income / (loss) 24
Other comprehensive income / (loss) not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent vear:
Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans (5.55) (2,62;
Income tax effect 1.40 0.66
Total other comprehensive income / (loss) (4.15) (1.96}
Toral comprehensive income for the year 8.48 28.24
Iiarnings per equity share attributable to equity holders of the parent 25
jnominal value of share T10 (31 March, 2022 T 10)|
Basic earning per share 5.82 13,92
Diluted eaming per share 582 1392

summary ol significant accounting palicies

(5]

The accompanying noles are an integral part of the financial statements
Ag per our report of even date

For S.R, Batliboi & Associa
ICAI Firm Registration N

LLP

il ja¥ Bachchani
Partnur
Membership No.: 400419

Place: Glrugram
Date : 25 Apnl 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Adroit 1, s.\pu:tion Services Private Limited

: oy

Bhaskar Ghosh Kalyan KumarMalla
Director Director
DIN; 08186442 DIN: 18360622

Place: Delhi
Drate - 25 Apnil 2023



Adroit Inspection Services Private Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2023
CIN: U93000DL2016PTC292367

(Tin Lacs)
For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

A. Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before tax 2 28.30 33.07
Adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net ensh flows
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets 3953 38.67
Amortisation of intangible assets 0.34 0.80
Finance costs (including fair value change in financial instruments) : 3835 37.15
Finance income (including fair value change in financial instruments) (3.74) -
Impairment / (reversals) on financial instruments 2236 (23.54)
Share-based payment expense 0.63 9.32
Operating profit before working capital changes 126.27 95.47
Movement in working capital: '
(Increase) / Decrease in trade receivables 6.50 (118.42)
(Increase) / Decrease in other financial assets 17.79 25875
(Increase) / Decrease in other assets 179.88 (247.05)
Increase / (Decrease) in employee benefits 9.57 4.49
Increase/ (Decrease) in trade payables (55.39) 157.27
Increase/ (Decrease) in other financial ligbilities {27.52) 293
Increase/ (Decrease) in other liabilities (24.20) 291
Cash generated from operations 232.90 176.35
Direct taxes paid (net of refunds) y (38.58) (94.30)
Cash generated from operations (A) 194,32 82.05
B. Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (8.48) (26.06)
Interest received (finance income) 374 -
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (4.74) (26.06)
€. Cash flows from financing activities
Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities (11.40) (9.92)
Payment of interest expenses (39.48) (49.85)
Buyback of employee stock options (58.49) B
Repayment of barrowings (473.57) (855.00)
Proceed from borrowings 399.49 761.72
Net cash used in financing activities . . (C) {183.45) (153.05)
Netincrease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 6.13 (97.06)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 46.72 143.78
Cash and eash equivalents at the end of the year 52.85 46,72
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand - -
Balances with banks:
- On current accounts : 52.85 46.72
Total cash and cash equivalents (refer note 6) i 52.85 46.72

(This space has been intentionally left blank)




Adroit Inspection Services Private Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2023
CIN: U93000DL2016PTC292367

(¥ in Lacs)

Notes:
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

Lease liability N

borrowings
Asat 01 April 2021 12,79 385,29
Cach flows (19.92) (93.28)
Non cash changes 17826 -
Asat 31 March 2022 171.13 292.01
As at 01 April 2022 17113 292.01
Cash flows (27.00) (74.08)
MNon cash changes 15,60 -
As at 31 March 2023 159.73 217.93
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date
‘or S.R. Batliboi & Assd®iutes LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Dircctors of
ICAl Firm Registratio 101049W / E300004 Adroit Inspectidn Services Private Limited
2 !O C_b-,kd,&“)
njay Bachchani Bhaskar Ghosh Kalyan Kumifr Malla

artner Director Director
Membership No: 400419 DIN: 08156442 DIN: 08560022
Place Gurugram Place; Delhi

tate 1 25 April 2023 Date - 25 Aprit 2023




Adroit Inspection Services Private Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity as at 31 March 2023
CIN: U93000DL2016PTC292367

A, Share capital;

Equity share capital
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up No. of Shares {¥in Lacs)
Equity shares of ¥ 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid
Asat 01 April 2021 2,17,020 21.70
Increase/{decrense) during the year - %
Asat 31 March 2022 2,17,020 21.70
As at 01 April 2022 2,17,020 21.70
Increase/ decrease) during the year - -
As at 31 March 2023 2,17.020 2170
B. Other equity (% in Lacs)
Reserve & surplus
" f . . Deemed Capital Total
Retained earnings|Security premium Conttibution
As at 01 March 2021 283.55 79.31 12.42 375.28
Profit for the vear ended 30.20 - - 30.20
Other comprehensive income for the year ended (1.96) - - (1.96)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year ended 28.24 - - 28.24
Share based payments - - 932 9.32
As at 31 March 2022 3179 79.31 21.74 412.84
Profit for the year ended 12,63 - - 12.63
Other comprehensive income for the year ended (4.15) - - (4.15)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year ended 8.48 - - 8.48
Share based payments - buy back (54.61) - (3.88) (58.49)
Share based payments - - 0.63 0.63
As at 31 March 2023 265.66 79.31 18.49 363.46

Summary of significant accounting policies

2

The sccompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date

L]
For S.R. Batliboi & Assacigtes LLP
ICAL Firm Registration,

101049W / E300004

Place: Gurugram
Date : 25 April 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Dircetors of
Adroit Inspection Services Private Limited

Bhaskar Ghosh
Director
DIN: 08186442

Place: Delhi

7

Date : 25 April 2023

W

Kalyan Kumai Malla

Director
DIN: 08560622




Adroit Inspection Services Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
CIN: U93000DL2016PTC292367

(Amounts in Lacs, unless otherwise stated)

2.1

2.2

Corporate information

Adroit Inspection Services Private Limited ("the Company") is a private limited company domiciled in India and
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The registered office of the company is located at Unit
No 701 to 711, 7" Floor, Best Business Park, Plot No. P-2, Netaji Subhash Place, Pitampura, Delhi - 110034.

The Company is strategically engaged in automobile inspection, valuation, certification and other allied service in the
automobile segment.

The company renders most effective services to diverse ensemble of clients which includes general insurance
companies, financial institutions, NBFCs & Banks. Adroit is a par of Shriram Automall, which is India’s leading service
provider for transactions of pre-owned vehicles & equipment.

Significant accounting policies

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements of the Company has been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and
presentation requirements of Division II of Schedule 111 to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule I11),
as applicable.

This financial statement is presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s functional currency. All
amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest lakhs, except wher otherwise indicated.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following assets and liabilities
which have been measured at fair value or revalued amount:

items Measurement basis

Certain financial assets and liabilities Fair value or amortized cost

Net defined benefit (asset)/ liability Fair value of plan assets less present value of
defined benefit obligations |

Equity settled employee share-based payment plan Fair Value

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current / non-current classification. An asset
as current when it is:

a) Expected to be realised or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

b) Held primarily for the purpose of trading

¢) Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

d) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is current when:
a) Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle //\6‘1 SN

&\

b) Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading "/‘_-::_-C:‘-"" -i"{;,
¢) Itis due to be settled within twelve months,gH 3 rling period, or /f:_:'}'/ \\fr.
3 S\ )
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Adroit Inspection Services Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
CIN: U93000DL2016PTC292367

(Amounts in Lacs, unless otherwise stated)

2.3

2.4

d) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

Foreign currencies

Functional and presentational currency

The Company’s financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the Company’s functional currency. Functional
currency is the currency of the primary economic environment in which an entity operates and is normally the currency
in which the entity primarily generates and expends cash.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at the functional currency spot rates at the date
the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Income and expenses in foreign currencies are recorded at exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of
exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in Statement of profit or
loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in foreign currencies are not retranslated.

Fair value measurement

The Company measures certain financial instruments and equity settled employee share based payment plan at fair value
at each reporting date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the

transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

a) in the principal market for the asset or liability, or
b) in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

assgleldaqguto account a market participant's ability to generate economic
“‘m selling it to another market participant that would use the

benefits by using the asset in its highesl:_gﬁiﬂ.' w@}
asset in its highest and best use. qi %
I Q_;. )




Adroit Inspection Services Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
CIN: U93000DL2016PTC292367

(Amounts in Lacs, unless otherwise stated)

2.5

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within
the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is sigrificant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

a)  Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
b)  Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is directly or indirectly observable

¢)  Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest leve] input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period,

The Company determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement, such as unquoted
financial assets measured at fair value.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, unquoted financial assets, and significant liabilities,
such as valuation of unquoted investments and equity settled employee share based payment plan. Involvement of
external valuers is decided upon annually by the Company’s management. Selection criteria include market knowledge,
reputation, independence and whether professional standards are maintained. The Company management decides with
the Company’s external valuers, which valuation techniques and inputs to use for each case.

At each reporting date, the Company’s management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which
are required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting policies. For this analysis, the
Company’s management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the
valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

The Company’s management, in conjunction with the Company’s external valuers, also compares the change in the fair
value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

The Company management present the valuation results to the Board of Directors and the Company’s independent
auditors. This includes a discussion of the major assumptions used in the valuations.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of
the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value nierarchy as explained above.,

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant
notes

a) Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions (Note 2.19)

b) Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy (Note 33)

¢) Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) (Note 31)

d) Equity Settled employee share based payment plan (Note 40)

Revenue recognition

ervices are delivered to the
entitled in exchange for

.IELJG
have ¢
£

- <



Adroit Inspection Services Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

CIN: U93000DL2016PTC292367

(Amounts in Lacs, unless otherwise stated)
Company has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements because it typically when services
are being delivered to the customer. Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured at the amount
of transaction price (net of variable consideration, if any) allocated to that performance obligation. The transaction price
of goods sold and services rendered is net of variable consideration, ifany, on account of various discounts and schemes
offered by the Com pany as part of the contract. Payment is generally received on successful completion of services

Rendering of services

Inspection and valuation income: The company collects service income for inspection and valuation of automobiles.
The revenue is recognised upon rendering of service (point in time).

The Company considers whether there are other promises in the contract that are separate performance obligations to
which a portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated. In determining the transaction price, the Company
considers the effects of variable consideration, the existence of significant financing components, non-cash
consideration, and consideration payable to the customer (if any).

The provision for anticipated returns is made primarily on the basis of historical return rates. The provision for turnover
discount, cash discount & additional discount is made on estimated basis based on histarical trends.

Vuriable consideration

ar contract inception and constrained until it s highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of
cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved. Some of the contracts with customer provide a right to customer of cash rebate/discount if
payment is cleared within specified due dates,

Contract assets

Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage
of time is required before payment of the consideration is due).

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the
Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the
payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue whea the Company performs under
the contract.

Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract ( i.e., transfers control of
the related goods or services to the customer).

Interest income

. o
Interest income is recognized on time propom \'.‘.-_.‘ nto account the amount ouls‘I;rr'@h:e—m‘i&ﬂm rdte applicable
. . ._. i ¥ NG
for all financial instruments measured at amf/d Y

. [ [ Qs P . -
ther interest-bearing ﬁnTltg.,:ll,,ﬂ assets, In{grest income is
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Adroit Inspection Services Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
CIN: US3000DL2016PTC292367

(Amounts in Lacs, unless otherwise stated)

2.6

recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of
the financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by
considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar
options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in other income in the statement
of profit or loss.

Dividends

Dividend Income is recognised when the Company’s right to receive the payment is established, and no significant
uncertainty as to collectability exists.

Income tax

Current income tax

Currentincome tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted
at the reporting date in the countries where the Company operates and generates taxable incore.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either
in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and considers whether it is probable that a
taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. The Company shall reflect the effect of unceitainty for each
uncertain tax treatment by using either most likely method or expected value method, depending on which method
predicts better resolution of the treatment.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

. When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss

b In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, when the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax cradits
and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

¢ When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss




Adroit Inspection Services Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 Maich 2023
CIN: U93000DL2016PTC292367

(Amounts in Lacs, unless otherwise stated)
d. In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred
tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced o the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the reporting date

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss. Deferred tax items
are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income cr directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to ihe same faxable entity and the sane taxation authority.

2.7  Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment other than Freehold land are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of purchase price/cost of construction, including
non-refundable taxes or levies and any expenses attributable to bring the assets to its working condition for its intendad
use. Freehold land is stated at cost. When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced
ai intervals, the Company recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant
and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are
récognised in the statement of profit or loss as incurred. All the items worth less than rupees five thousand are either
expensed off completely or depreciated 100% in the same year.

Depreciation

Depreciation is charged on a pro-rata basis for Property, Plant and Equipment purchased znd soid curing ihe year.
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment has been provided on the straight-line method as per the useful lives
prescribed in Schedule I1 to the Companies Act, 2013.

Category of assets Useful life |
Computer — Server & Network 6 years 1
Computer — Laptops & Desktops ) 3years i
Furniture & fixture - 10years |
Office Equipment 5 years ]

The Company, based on management estimate supported by internal technical expert, depreciares office equiprent over
estimated useful lives which are different from the useful life prescribed in Schedule I1 to the Companies Act, 2013.
The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over
which the assets are likely to be used.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of
the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included
in the statement of profit or loss when the asset i ”Ff_ hagd.

A
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CIN: U93000DL2016PTC292367

(Amounts in Lacs, unless otherwise stated)

2.8

2.9

2.10

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each
financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as separate assels, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with expenditure will flow to the Company and the cost of

the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss at the
time of incurrence.

Intangible assets
Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is their fair value as at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets
are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Internally generated
intangible assets, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and expenditure is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss when it is incurred.

Amortisation and useful lives

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives.
The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate being accounted for on prospective basis.

An Intangible assets is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from use of disposal.
Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the ditference between the nei disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is

derecognised.

A summary of the policies applied to the Company’s intangible assets is as follows:

Intangible assets Useful lives Internally generated or acquired
Trademark Acquired
Computer software 3 vears Acquired

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as separate assets, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with expenditure will flow to the Company and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss at the
time of incurrence.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as pari of the cost of the asset. All other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interast and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds,

Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whethe
the right to control the use of an identified asset fo

or contains, a lease. Thart is, ifthe-contract conveys
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2.11

Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets

Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e.. the date the underlying asset
is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairrment losses,
and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities, The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less
any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease
term and the estimated useful lives of the assets.

Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value ol lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (inciuding insubstance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts
expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the
event or condition that triggers the payment oceurs.

In caleulating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the jease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. Afier the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments
made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease
term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used
to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of mach inery and equipment
(i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment thar are
considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term,

Impairment of non—financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or Company’s assets. When
the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written
down to its recoverable amount. :
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2.12

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specitic to the asset. In determining
fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be
identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted
share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators,

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast caiculations, which are prepared
separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast
calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied
to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the most
recent budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or declining
growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed
the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or country or countries in which the entity operates, or
for the market in which the asset is used.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement of
profit and loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increzsed carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset {or cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at sach reporting date to determine whether there is an indication
that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists. the Cempany
estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there
has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss
was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount,
nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of each CGU (or Company of CGUs) to
which the goodwill relates. When the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than its carrying amount. an impairment

loss is recognised. Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods,

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement
All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value

through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets

withingq {ime frame established by regulation or convention in the
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market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase
or sell the asset

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

a) Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

b) Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) with recycling of cumulative gains
and losses

¢) Equity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) with no recycling of cumulative
gains and losses upon derecognition

d) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets at amortised cost
A “Financial instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows,
and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely pavments of principal and
interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance income in the profit or loss.
The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss.

The Company’s financial assets at amortised cost includes trade receivables, balances with banks, and other financial
assets.

Debt instrument at FVTOCI

A debt instruments is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met;
a. The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial
assets, and

b.  The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at ezch reporting date at fair
value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Company
recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the P&L. On de-
recognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to P&L.
Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Equity instruments at FVTOCI

All equity instruments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading
and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies are
classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value in otheg

ghensive income. The Company makes such election on an
ppon initial recognition and is iprgyoable, -

L
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If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument,
excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OC! to P&L, even on sale
of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the
P&L.

Financial assets at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for financial assets. Any financial assets. which does nor meet the criteria for
categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOC], is classified as at FVTPL.

[n addition, the Company may elect to classify a financial asset, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI
criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or
recognition inconsistency (referred ta as ‘accounting mismatch’).

Financial assets included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes, recognized in the P&L.

De-recognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s consolidated balance sheet) when:

a.  The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

b.  The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed! an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either
(a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or () the Company has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to recsive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither
transterred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the assel, the
Company continues to recognise the transferred asset 1o the extent of the Company’s coatinuing involvement. Ir (hat
case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated Hability are measurad
on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Cornpany has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guaraniee over the transferred asset is measured ar the lower of the
original carrying amonnt of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to
repay.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordurice with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:
a. Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., lvans, debt securities, deposits,
trade receivables and bank balance
Financial assets that are debt instruments and ars measured as at FVTOC]
Lease receivables under Ind-AS 17.
Contract assets and trade receivables under [nd-AS |2
Loan commitrents which are not measured as go#
Financial guarantee contracts which are not /48

S0 oo o
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The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of im?aéirmem loss allowance on:

a. Trade rezeivables, and
b.  All lease receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 17.

The application ol simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in cradit risk. Rather, it recognises
impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. right frem its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether
there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased
significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment Joss. However, if credit risk has increased sign:ficantly,
lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer &
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss
allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifstime ECL which results from default events on a financial
instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date,

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When
estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

a.  All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment extension, cai! and similar options) over
the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial
instrument cannot be estimated reiiably, then the entity is required to use the remaining contractual term of the
finaricial instrument.

b. Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral o the contractual terms.

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss 2llowance on porifoiio of
its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of' the
trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed defaul
rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized es income/expense in the
statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the P&L. The balance
sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described below:

The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described below:

a. For financial assets measured as at amortised cost and lease receivables: ECL is presented as an ailowance, i.e. as
an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying
amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross
carrying amount,
b.  Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: ECL is presented as a provision n the balance sheet, i.¢. as
a liability,

¢. Debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: Since financial assets are already reflected &i fair value. impairment
allowance is not further reduced from its value. Rather, ECL amount is presented a5 “zccumulated impairment
amount’ in the OCI.
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For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial instruments on the basis of
shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant
increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial assets. i.e., financiai assets
which are credit impaired on purchase/ origination.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrewings and payables. net
of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables and loans and borrowings meluding bank
averdrafts.

Subsequent measurzment
The measurement cf financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Financial liabilities «! fuir value through profit or loss

Finaucial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financia: liabilities

designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial lisbiiities are classified as held for
trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading
are recognised in the profit or less,

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or lose are dezignared as such at the
initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind-AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair
value gains/ losses atiributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gainz/loss are not
subsequently transfeired to P&L. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within zquity. All
other changes in fair value of such liability are recagnised in the statement of profit or loss.

Loans ond borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearinz loans and borrowings are
subsequenily measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amoitisation process. Arnortised cosr is caleulared by aking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fess or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss. This category generally appiies 1o
borrowings.

De-recognition
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligatign under the liability is discharged or cascelled or expires. When

an existing financial liability is replaced by s the same lender or substantially diiTerent terms, or the terms
) g1Eexehange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of

[gbfl "
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the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss

Re-classification of Financial Assels

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition,
no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets
which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those
assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Company’s senior management determines
change in the business model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the Company’s
operations. Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the Company
cither begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies financial
assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately
next reporting period following the change in business model. The Company does not restate any previously recognised
gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

Offsetting of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated balance sheet if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

2.13 Retirement and other employee benefits

Shart term employee benefits

The undiscounted amount of short term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for services rendered by
employees is recognised during the period when the employee renders the service. These hensfits include compensated
absences such as paid annual leave and performance incentives payable within twelve months.

Post-employment benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation,
other than the contribution payable to the provideat fund. The Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident
fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for
service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit pavable to the scheme
is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution aiready paid. !f the contribution already paid exceeds the
contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an assel to the axtent
that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future pavment or a cash refund.

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in india, which requires contributions Lo be made to = separaiely
administered fund.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projecicd unit credit method,
Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excinding amounts inciude
in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounis inciuded in net interest

on the net defined henefit liability), are recognised immediately ir the balance sheet withi corresponding deeit or cezdit
to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they nceur. Re-measurements are nor reciassified 10 profit or

loss in subsequent periods.
el
o>

Past service costs are recognised in profit or,
a. The date of the plan amendment or cu
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2.14

b.  The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Company

recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the consolidated statement of

profit and loss:

a. Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service cests, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine
settlements; and

b. Net interest expense or income.

Compensated absences

Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the

employee renders the related services are recognised as a liability at the present value of the defined benefit obligation
at the balance sheet date.

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve monihs, as long-term employee
benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial
valuation using the projected unit credit method at the reporting date. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to
the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance

sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional right to defer the settlement for at least twelve monltis after the
reporting date.

Share based payments
Equity settled transactions

The cost of equity-settled transactions is determinad by the fair value at the date when the grant is made vsing an
appropriate valuation model.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, based on the Company’s estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a
corresponding increase in equity. At the end of each reporting period, the Company revises iis estimate of the number
of equity instruments expected to vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recogiized in
Statement of Profit and Loss such that the cumulative expenses reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding
adjustment to the Share Based Payments Reserve.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance and/or service
conditions have not been met. Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with parties other than employees are
measured at the fair value of the services received, except where that fair value cannot be estimated reliably, in which

case they are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments granted, measured at the date the counter party renders
the service.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is refiected as additionai share dilution in the compuiavion of diluted earnings
per share.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or construciive) as a result of a past event,
it is probab]e that an outflow of resources embod'*mb economic beneiits will be required (o s=itie the obligation and a
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Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past event:. the existence of which
will be confirmed only by occurrence or non- occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past evenis where it is either not srobable that an outflow
of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made. Contingenr liabilities are
disclosed in the notes.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements. A contingent asset is not recognized unless it becomes
virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise When an inflow of economic benefits is probable,
contingent assets are disclosed in the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, previsions are discounted using a current nre-iax rate that reflects,
when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increasc in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Provisions and contingent liabilities are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

2.16 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and shov-term deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term
deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an intzgrz! part of the Company’s
cash management.

2.17 Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Basic Earnings Per Share is calculated by dividing the profit for the year atiributable to equity holders of the Comnany
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the
Company (after adjusting for interest on the convertible preference shares) and the weighted zverage number of equity
shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares,

2.18 Cash dividend and non-cash distribution to equity holders of the Company

The Company recognises a liability to make cash or non-cash distributions to equity holders of the Company when the
distribution is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per the corporate laws
in India, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognised
directly in equity.

2.19 Significant accounting judgement, estimates and assumptions

In application of Company's accounting policies, which are described in Note 2, the directors of the company are
required to make judgements, estimations and assumptions about the carrying value of assets and liabilities that are 7ot
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are sesimagéd on un ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are

recognised in the period in which the esti
revision or future periods if the revision aff¢ers ‘Q’ [g,':q
Lot
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A.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which
have the most significant effect on the amounis recognised in the financial statements:

Operating lease commitments — Company as ua lessee

The Company has entered into lease agreements with lessor and has determined, based on an evaluation of the termis
and conditions of the arrangements, such as the lease term not constituting a major part of the economic life of the
commercial property and the fair value of the asset, that it does not retains the significant risks and rewards of ownership
of these properties and accounts for the contracts as operating leases.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty af the reporting date, that
financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters availabie when
the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about fiiture developments, however,
may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes
are reflected in the assumptions when they occur. Estimates anc underlying assumptions are revizwed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively.

Tirxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent it is probabie that taxable profits will be availubie against which the
Josses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets
that can be recognised, based upen the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits wgetaer with future tex
planning strategies.

Pravision for tax labilities require judgements on the interpretation of tax legislation, developments in case law and the
potential outcomes of tax audits and appeals which may be subject to significant uncertainiy. Therefore, the actual
resuits may vary from expectations resulting in adjustments to provisions, the valuation of deferred 1ax assers. cash tax
settlements and therefore the tax charge in the Statement of Profit ¢r Loss.

Defined benefit plans (gratuity)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present valuz of the gratuity obligatio are determined using
actuarial valuations. An actuarial vaiuation involves making various assumptions that mav differ from actual
developments in the furure. These include the determination of the discount rate, fuiure salary increases and mortality
rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined beezfir obligation is highly
sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed zt sach reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate, the management
considers the interest rates of government boads with term that correspond with the expectad term of the detined benefit
obligation. The mortality rate is based on publiciy available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend 1o change only
at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expecred
future inflation rates for the respective countries.

Further details about gratuity obligations are given in Notg
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Provision for trade receivable

Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their nominal value as reduced by appropriate alicwances
for estimated irrecoverable amounts. Estimated irrecoverable amounts are based on the ageing o' the receivable balances
and historical experience adjusted for forward-looking estimates. Individual trade receivabies are written off when
management deems them not to be collectible. For details of ailowance for doubtful debts piease refer Note 3

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets, other than deferred tax assets, are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit (‘\CGU”) is the greater of its value in use and its fair value
less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money ang the risks specific to the
asset or CGU. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are acompanyed 10gether
into the smallest Company of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largel independest of the
cash inflows of other assets or Company’s of assets (*CGU").

Market related information and estimates are used to determine the recoverable amount. Key assumptions on which
management has based its determination of recoverable amount include estimated long term growth rates, weighted
average cost of capital and estimated operating margins. Cash flow projections take into account past experience and
represent management’s best estimate about future developments.

Property, plant end equipment and Intangible Asseis

Refer note 2.7-2.8 and note 3-4 for estimatea useful life and carrying value of property, plant and equipment
respectively. The charge in respect of periodic depreciation/amortization is derived after determining an estimate of an
asset's expected useful lite and the expected residual value at the end of its life. Management at the time the asset is
acquired/capitalized periodically, including at each financial period/year end, determines the useful lives and residual
values of Company’s assets. The lives are based on historical experience with similar assets as well as anticipation of
future events, which may affect their life, such as changes in technology. The estimated useful life is reviewed at least
annually.

Fuir value of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recordad in the balance sheet cznnot be measured based
on quoted price in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the present valuation
technique. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible,
a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as
liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could effect the reported fair value
of financial instruments.

Impairment of financial assets

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of defauit and expected cash loss
rates.  The Company uses judgements in making these assumptions and selecting the inpuis 10 the impairment
calculations based on Company’s history, existing markeaeg@itions as well as forward locking estimates al the end of

each reporting period.

B
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Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate {mplicit in the lease. therefore, it uses its incremental barrowing
rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The [BR is the rate of interest that the Company would have to pay to borrow
over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a siriiar vaiue to the right-of-
usc asset in a similar economic environment

Share-based payments

For the measurement of the fair value of equity-settled ransactions with employees at the grant dare, the Company uses
a most appropriate method (i.e., discounted cash flow approach, comparable companies method, etc.) for Employee
Share option Plan. The assumptions and models used for estimating fair value for share-based payment transacrions are
dependent on the terms of the scheme. Such assumptions include weighted average share price, exercise price, volatility,
expected life option, risk free interest rate, ete.

New and amended standards

(a) Onerous Contracts — Costs of Fulfilling a Contract — Amendments to Ind AS 37

The amendments to Ind AS 37 specify which cosis an entity needs to include when assessing whether a conrract is
onerous or loss-making. The amendments apply a “directly related cost approach”. The cosis that relate directly to &
contract to provide goods or services include both incremental costs for example direct labour and materials and an
allocation of other costs directly related to contract ctivities for example an allocation of the depreciation charge for
an item of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling that contract. General and administrative costs do not relate
directly to a contract and are excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable to the counierparty under the contract.

The amendments are effective for annual reporring periods beginning or or after | April 2022. The Company is currently
assessing the impact of the amendments to determine the impact they will have on the Company’s accounting policy
disclosures.

{b) Reference to the Conceptual Framework — Amendments to Ind AS 103

The amendments replaced the reference to the [CAI’s “Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements under Indian Accounting Standards” with the reference to the “Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting under Indian Accounting Standard” without significantly changing its requirerments.

The amendments also added an exception to the recognition principle of Ind AS 103 Business Combinations to avoid
the issue of potential ‘day 2* gains or iosses arising for liabilities and contingent liabilities thai would be within the
scope of Ind AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Lizbilities and Contingent Assets or Appendix C. Levies, o' ind AS 27, if
incurred separately.

It has also been clarified that the existing guidance in Ind AS 103 for contingent assets would rot be affected by replacing

the reference to the Framework for the Preperation and Presentation of Financial Statemen:s undar Indian Accounting
Standards.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting pericds beginning on or after 1 April 2022. The amendments are not
expected to have a material impact on the Compary.

(c) Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use — Amendments to [nd AS 16
The amendments modified paragraph 17(e) of Ind AS 16 to clarify that excess of net sale proceeds of items produced

over the cost of testing, if any, shall not be recoefEerdomile profit or loss but deducted from the directly attributable
costs considered as part of cost of an item of
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The amendments are effective for annual reportiag periods beginning on or after | April 2022, {hs umendmients are not
expected to have a material impact on the Company.

(d) Ind AS 101 First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards — Subsidiary s a firsi-time adopler

The amendment permits a subsidiary that elects to apply the exemption in paragraph D16(a) of Ind AS 101 t¢ measure
cumulative franslation differences for all foreign operations in its Ind-AS Financial Stazements using the zmounts
reported by the parent, based on the parent’s date of iransition to Ind AS, if no adjustments wers made for consolidation
procedures and for the effects of the business combination in which the paient acquired the subzidiary, This amendment
is also available to an associate or joint venture that uses exemption in paragraph D16(a) of Ind AS 101,

)

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods oeginning on or afier 1 April 2022 but do not appiy 1o the
Company as it was first time adopter in an earlier year,

(e) Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments — Fees in the *10 per cent’ tast for derecoguition of financial liabilitiss

The amendment clarifies the fees that an entity includes when assessing whether the terms of 2 new or modified financial
liability are substantially different from the terms of the original financial liability. These fees include enly those paid

or received between the barrower and the lender, including fees paid or received by either the borrower or lender on the
other’s behalf.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2022. The amendmenis are
not expected to have a material impact on the Company.

(f) Ind AS 41 Agriculture — Taxation in fair value measurements

The amendment removes the requirement in paragraph 22 of Ind AS 41 that entities exclyde cash flows for taxation
when measuring the fair value of assets within the scope of Ind AS 41

T'he MCA has notified the Amendments to Ind AS consequential to Conceptual Framework uuder Ind AS vide
notification dated March 23, 2022, applicable for annual periods beginning on or after Aprii 1, 2022, Accordingly, the
Conceptual Framework is applicable for preparers for accounting periods beginning on or afier 1 April 2022,

These amendmenis had no impact on the financial statements of the Company.

Standards issued but not yet effective

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards, There is no
such notification which are applicable from 01 April 2023 or after and which may have an, materia! impact on the
financial statements of the Company.
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3 Property, plant and equipment #
Office equipment  Furniture & fixtures  Server & Networks Computers Total
Gross block
Asat 01 April 2021 6.05 292 2.90 71.30 83.17
Additions 627 0.80 - 18.82 25.89
Dhsposals - - - - -
As at 31 March 2022 12.32 3.72 2,90 90.12 109.06
As at 01 April 2022 12.32 T2 2.90 920.12 109.06
Additions 266 0.68 - 6,08 942
Disposals - - - - -
As at 31 March 2023 14.98 4.40 2,90 96.20 118.48
Accumulated depreciation
Asat 01 April 2021 4.58 0.5 164 37.25 44.02
Charge for the year 0.50 0,95 017 2220 23,42
_Disposals - . - E -
As at 31 March 2022 5,08 1.50 1.81 5945 67.84
Asat 01 April 2022 5.08 1.50 1.81 59.45 67.84
Charge for the year 1.89 025 018 17.52 19,84
Disposals - - - - -
As at 31 March 2023 6.97 1.75 1.99 76.97 87.68
Net book value
As at 31 March 2022 7.24 2,22 1.09 30.67 41.22
As at 31 March 2023 8.01 2.65 091 19.23 30.80
# The Company has neither revalued nor Impaired its Property, Plant and Equipment during the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022
4 Intangible assets & Right of Use assets * #
Trade mark  Computer software Total Right of Use
Gross Block .
Asat 01 April 2021 0.11 3.85 3.96 29.64
Additions - 016 0.16 177.30
Disposals - - - (23.94,
As at 31 March 2022 0.11 4.01 4,12 183.00
Asat 01 April 2022 0.11 401 4.12 183.60
Additions - - - -
Disposals - B - -
As at 31 March 2023 0.11 4.01 4.12 183.00
Accumulated depreciation
As at 01 April 2021 0.07 2.66 273 17.96
Amortization / depreciation for the year 0.01 079 0.80 14.85
Disposals - - - (15.68)
As at 31 March 2022 0.08 345 353 17.13
Asat 01 April 2022 0.08 345 353 17.13
Amortization / depreciation for the year 0.01 .33 0.34 19.69
Disposals - - - -
As at 31 March 2023 0.09 3.78 3.87 36.82
Net book value
As at 31 March 2022 0,03 0.56 0.59 165.87
Asat 31 March 2023 0.02 0.23 0.25 146,18

* Right to use assets includes office premises and yards.
# The Company has neither revalued nor impaired its Intangible assets or Right to Use assets during the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022

(This spuce has been mrentionally left blank)
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5 Trade reccivables
Asat 3] March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Current Non-current Current Nan-current
Trade receivables 281,58 - 23353 -
Receivables from related parties (refer note 28) 26.10 - 103,01 -
Total trade receivables 307.68 - 336.54 -
Break-up:
Secured, considered good - = - -
Unsecured, considered good 307.68 - 336.54
Trade receivable which have significant increase in credit risk 60.33 - 3797 -
Trade receivable credit impaired - - - -
368.01 - 374.51 -
Impairment Allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful debls)
Secured, considered good - = - -
Unsecured, considered good - - - -
Trade receivable which have significant increase in credit risk (60.33) - (37.97) -
Trade recervable credit impaired - - - -
(60.33) - {37.97) -
Total 307.68 - 336.54
Trade receivables Ageing Schedule
31 March 2023
Current bist Quitstanding for following periods from due date of payment *
Particulars Less than 6| 6 months - 1 More than 3 Total
not due 1-2 years 2-3 years
maonths year| years|
Undisputed contract assets considered good - 263.58 40.29 2.54 1.27 - 307.68
TR, - 0.02 3976 14.77 217 161 6033
- which have significant increase-in credit risk
Undisputed contract assets - credit Impaired - - - - - B -
Disputed contract assets - credit impaired - - - - - - -
Disputed contract assets
= which have significant increase-in credit risk B ) ) i ) )
| Disputed contract assets - cradit Impaired - - - - - - -
[Total E 263.60 80.05 17.31 3.4 3.61 368.01
31 March 2022
Cusveist bt Outstanding for following periods from due date of puyment * _ [
Particulars Less than 6] 6 months - 1 More than 3 Total
not due 1-2 years| 2-3 yeary
maonths year yenrs
Undisputed contract assets considered good # 32899 1.36 0.19 - : 336.54
Undisputed contract assets ; 0.04 13.74 976 801 642 37.97
- which have significant increase-in credit risk
Undisputed contract assets - credit Impaired - - - - - = -
Disputed contract assets - credit Impaired - - - - - - -
Disputed contract assets )
- which have significant increase-in credit risk ) . i ) | i
Disputed contract agsets - credit Impaired - - - - - = -
Total - 329,03 21.10 9.95 R.01 6,42 374,51

* Due date has been considered from invoice dme,

No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other persun. Nor any trade or other receivable are
due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or o member. For terms and conditions relating to related panv receivables
and trade receivables, refer note 16.

The movement in impairment allowance of trade receivables as follow:

As at 31 March 2023 Asat 31 March 2022
Current Non-current Current Non-current
Opening balance 3797 - 61.51 -
Additions / (Reversals) 2236 * (23.54) -
Write-ofT (niet of recovery) - - - -
Closing balance 60,33 - 37.97 -
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6 Cash and cash equivalents

As at 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2022

Current Non Current Current  Non Current

Balances with banks:

On current accounts 52.85 - 46,72 -

Depasits with original maturity of less than three months - - &
Cash on hand - - - N
Total 52.85 - 46.72 -
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:
Balances with banks:

On current accounts 52,85 - 46,72 -
Cash on hand = = = p:
Total 32.85 - 46.72 -

7 Other financial assets

As at 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2022

Curient Non-curreit Current  Non-current
Security deposits
Secured, considersd good - - - -
Unsecured, considered pood 047 223 028 1.76
Recoverable which have significant increase in credit risk - - - -
Receivables - credit impaired - - - -
0.47 223 0.28 1.76
Less Impairment Allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful security deposits) . - - -
Total (A) 0.47 2.23 .28 1.76
Contract pssets #
Secured, considered good - - - -
Unsecured, considered good* 163.20 - 180.22 -
Recoverable which have significant ingrease in credit risk - - -
Receivables - credit impaired - = - -
163.20 - 180.22 -
Less: Impairment Allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful contract assets) - - = -
Total (B) 163.20 - 180.22 -
Loan to employees
Secured, considered good = = -
Unsecured, considered good 041 (.49 1.32
Recoverable which have significant increase jn credit risk - - - -
Recervables - credit impaired - : - -
0.41 - 0.49 132
Less: Impairment Allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful loan to employees) - - - -
Totul (C) 0.41 - 0.49 1.32
Total (A+B+C) 164.08 2,23 180.99 3.08

*includes ¥ 0.65 lacs (31 March 2022 2 19.70) from related party, refer note 28

(This space hay been itentionally left blank)
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# Contract nssets Ageing Schedule
31 March 2023

Current but Outstanding for following periods

not due

Particulars Less than 6 | 6 months - 1 More than 3

months year years
16320 - = - =

1-2 years 2-3 years Total

Undisputed contract assets considered good -
Undisputed contracl assets

- which have significant increase-in credit risk
Undisputed contract assets - credit Impaired - - - - % z E
Disputed contract assets - credit Impaired - - - - - - -
Disputed contract assets

- which have significant increase-in credit risk
Disputed contract assets - credit Impaired - = - = - < s
Total - 163.20 - - - - 163.20

163.20

31 Murch 2022

Cureni it Outstanding for following periods

not due

Particulars Less than 6 | 6 months - 1 More than 3
maonths year vears

180.22 - — . =

Total
180.22

1-2 years 2-3 years

Undisputed contract assets considered good -
Undisputed contract assets

- which have significant increase-in credit risk
Undisputed contract assels - cradit [mpaired - - - - - = <
Disputed coniract assets - credit Impaired - = - = . 5 =
Disputed contract assets

- which have significant increase-in credit risk
Disputed contract assets - credit Impaired - - - - - =
Total - 180.22 - - - -

180.22

8 Other assets

Asat 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2022

Current Non-current Current Non-current
Unsecured, considered good
Capital advances - - - 0.94
Vendor advances 20286 - 409.57 -
Employee advances 1.60 - 357 -
Prepaid expenses 379 | 85 - 240
Balunce with statutory authorities 2633 - - -
Others recoverahble 1.21 - 1.21 -
Totul 235.79 1.85 41435 3.34

(Thix space has been intentionally lefi blunk)
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9 Share capital
s Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Authorised
250,000 (31 March 2022: 250,000) equity shares of ¥ 10/~ each {31 March 2022: equity shares of # 10 each) 25.00 25.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid equity capital
217,020 (31 March 2022: 217,020) equity shares of 2 10/- each (31 March 2022: equity shares of ¥ 10 each) 21.70 2170
21.70 21.70
2 R iliation of the equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporfing year:
Authorised share capital No. of Shares
As at 01 April 2021 25,00,000
Increase/(decrease) during the year =
As at 31 March 2022 25,00,000
Increase/(decrease) during the year _ =
Asat 31 March 2023 25,00,000
Issued equity eapital No. of Shares
Equity share of ¥ 10/~ each issued, subscribed and Tully paid
As at 01 April 2021 2,17,020
Inerease/(decrease) during the year =
As at 31 March 2022 2,17,020
Increase/(decrease) duning the year S
As at 31 March 2023 2,17,020

b.  Terms/ rights attached to equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of 7 10.00 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled 1o one vate per share, Each holder of

equily shares is entitled to one vole per share. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the sharehalders in the ensuing Annual
General Meeting

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, afier distribution of all preferential
amounts, The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders

¢, Shares held by holding company and their subsidiaries/ nssociates
Out of equity shares issued by the Company, shares held by its holding company and their subsidiaries are as follow:

Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Shriram Automall India Limied (inleuding its beneficiaries) 100.00% 100.00%
d.  Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Nuo. of shares % of holding No. of shares % of holding
Shriram Automall India Limied (inlcuding its beneficiaries) 2,17,020 100.00% 2,17,020 100.00%

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholder/ member and other declarations received from shareholder regarding beneficial interest, the above
shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.

e, Details of shareholding of promoters
The Company is professionally managed and have no promoters.

(Thiy space has been intentionally left blank)
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10 Other cquity

Asat
3i March 2023 37 Murch 2022

Retained Earning

Balance as the beginning of reporting year 31179 283.55
Add/Less: Profit for the year 12,63 30.20
Add/Less Other comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year (4.15) (1.96)
Add/lLess Shared based payment / buy-back (34.61) -
Amount nvallable for appropriation 263.66 31179

Less: Appropriations
Dividend on equity shares 2 -

Tax on equity dividend - -
Bilance as the end of reporting year 265.66 31L.79
Security Premium
Balance as the beginning of reporting year 79.31 79.31
Increase / (Decrease) during the year = -
Balance s the end of reporting year 79.31 79.31

Deemed Capital Contribution

Balunce as the beginning of reporting year 21.74 1242
Adid: Addition during the year (net of reversals) 0.63 932
Less: Share based payments - buy back (388) -
Balunce as the end of reporting year 18.49 204

Nuture and purpose of reserves
Retained earnings
Jtetained eamings represents company's accumulated undistributed earnings,

Securities premium

Seeurities premium is used 1o record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised only for limited purposes such as issuance of bonus shares in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

Deemed Capital Contribution
Deemed capital contribution represents Employee Stock Options (ESOP) cost allocated by holding company for the stock options issued to employees of e company

refer note 40

(This space hos been intentionally lefi blank)
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Il Borrowings

As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

Current Non-current Current Non-current
Loan from related panty (refer note 28)* 21793 - 292.01 -
Total horrowings 217.93 - 292.01 -
Secured = = ¥ =
Unsecured 217.93 - 292.01 -

* Borrowings had been taken from holding Company @ 9% towards working capital requirement which was repayable on demand. The Company has not defuulted in
repayment of said loans,

Trade pavables
As at 31 March 2023 Asat 31 March 2022
Current Non-current Current Non-current
Trade puyables of micro enterprises and small enterprises 34.98 = = =
Trade payables other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 260.92 - 351.44 -
Total 295.90 - 35144 -
Trude payables 287.79 - 33143 -
Trade payables to related parties (refer note 28) 8.11 - 20,01 -
295.90 - 351,44 -
Trade payables aging schedule
31 March 2023
Not Due Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment *
Particulars Less than 1 1 more than 3 Total
1-2 vears 2-3 year
year years
thal outsiam:!lng dues of ) . 14,08 . > - 3498
micro enterprises and small enterprises
Total outstanding dues of creditors
A 2 3 5437 194,74 4.95 391 295 260.92
other than micro enterprises and small enterprises
Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small enlerprises -+ - - - - -
Disputed dues of creditors
other than micro enterprises and small enterprises ) ) ) ) ) )
Total 54.37 229,72 4,95 3.91 295 295,90

31 March 2022

Mot Due Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment *
Particulars Less than 1 : more than 3 Total
1-2 years 2-3 year
year years|

Total gutstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterpnses

Total outstanding dues of creditors

3 ; 336.84 5.84 5.16 315 (145 35044
olher than micro enterprises and small enterprises |

Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - - - = . .

Dhisputed dues of creditors
ather than micro enterprises and small enterprises

Total 336.84 5.84 5.16 3.15 | .45 35144

Terms and conditions of the trade payables:
Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normully settled on 30-day terms.
* Due date has been considered from invoice date

The amount due to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as defined in the "The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006" ("MSMED") has been
determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the company.

Other linancial liabilities
As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 Mareh 2022
Current Non-current Current  Non-current
Other Ninancial liabilities at amortised cost
Employee related liabilities 16,33 - 43.85 -
Interest payable to related party (refer riote 28) 1.21 - 234 -
Total 17.54 - 46.19 -
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14 Net employee defined benefit liabilities

15

As at 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2022

Current Non-current Current Non-current
Provision Tor gratuity (refer note 26) 3.63 2816 0.04 19.35
Provision for compensated absences 15.06 - 12.54 =
Total 18.69 28.16 12.38 19.35

Other linbilities

As at 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2022

Current Non-current Current Non-current
Statutory dues payable 14.56 - 3875 -
Capital creditors 0.15 - - =
Totul 14.71 - 38.75

(s space has been mentionally left hiunk)
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16 Revenue from contract with customers

For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Operating revenue

Inspection income 1,150.51 1,023.39
Valuation income 89599 63562
Other business income 2017 1.31
Toltal 2,075.67 1,66032
Inchia 2,075.67 1,660.32
Outside India - -

Total 2,075.67 1,660.32

Timing of revenue recognition

Services transferred at a point in time - -
Services transferred over time 2.075.67 1,660.32
Totnl 2,075.67 1,660.32

Performance Obligations: for the details pertaining to performance obligation refer note 2.5
The company collects Goods and Service Tax (GST}) on behalf of the Government and hence, GST is not included in Reverue from operations,

Contract balances

Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Trade receivables 307.68 336.54
Contract assels 163.20 180,22

Contract liabilities = =

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 60-90 days. During 31 March 2023 % 60.33 lacs (31 March 2022 T 37.97 lacs) recognised as
provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables.

Contract assets consists of unbilled revenue:
The company has rendered services and recognised the revenue of ¥ 163.20 lacs in 31 March 2023 (31 March 2022 ¥ 180.22 lacs) during the year in the unbilled
revenue. [t expects similarly 1o recognise revenue in subsequent yaer.

Contract linhilities consists of deferred revenue:
The company has rendered services and recognised the revenue of Z Nil in 31 March 2023 (31 March 2022 ¥ Nil) during the year from the deferred revenue balance at
the beginning of the year. [t expects similarly to recognise revenue in subsequent year from the closing balance of deferred revenue as at 31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Revenue recognised that was included in the contract liability balance at the beginning of the year - -
Increases due to cash received, excluding amounts recognised as revenue during the year - -
Transfers from contract assets recognised at the beginning of the year to receivables 180.22 44124

Service Income
Revenue from services are recognized over the contract year based an the output method 1.2, pro rata over the year o the contract as and when the Company satisfies
performance obligation by transferring the promised services to its customers,

(This space has been intentionelly left blank)
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17  Other incomes

For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Interest income an

Income tax refund 3.60 -

Loans to employoes 0.14 0.14
Total (A) 3.74 0.14
Other income

Service business income 265.70 22754

Others 43159 123.53
Total (B) 309.29 351.07
Grand Total (A+B) 313.03 351.21

18  Employee benefits expense

For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Salaries, bonus and allowances 697 68 668,73
Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 26) 66.84 62,77
Gratuity expense (refer note 26) 9.27 6,78
Employee stock option expenses 0.63 932
Staff welfare expenses 1421 2129
Total 788.63 768.89
19 Deprecintion and amortisation expense
For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (refer note 3) 19,84 23.82
Amortisation on intangible assels (refer note 4) 0.34 0.80
Depreciation on right to use (refer note 4) 19.69 14.85
Total 39.87 3947
200 _Finance cost
For the year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Interest expense

On loan from related party (refer note 28) 2275 27.15
On lense linbility {refer note 27) 15.60 10.00
Total 38.35 37.15

(This space has been imtentionally left blank)
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21 Other expenses

For the yenr ended

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Bank charges 0,08 0.05
[Business OuSourcing 56.44 4994
Business promotion 7.08 346
Communication 12,98 14.51
Electricity 6.38 6.63
Allowances for expected credit loss / doubtful debts 2236 (23.54)
Inspection and valuation charges 1.317.63 1,014.37
Insurance 0.93 31806
Legal and professional 30.08 2520
Payment to auditors (refer details below) 452 4.50
Rates and taxes 020 097
Rent 123 247
Repairs and maintenance

Others 317 463
‘Travelling and conveyance 14 92 13.83
Miscellaneous expenses 15.05 12.07
Total 1,493.05 1,132.95
Pavment to auditors:

For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

As auditors:

Audit lee 4.00 3.50

Tax audit fee 0.50 1.00

Limited review -
In other capacity

Certifications -

Others - #

Reimbursement of expenses 0.02 .

4.52 4.50

(Thiy space has heen intentionally lefi biank)
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22 Income fax
The major components of income tax expense for the year ended:
Profit or loss
For the year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Current income tax:

Current income tax charge - 22.77
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous year 1.30 (6.91)
Deferred tux:
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences 14.87 (12.99)
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss 16.17 2.87
Other Comprehensive Income
Income tax related to items recognised in OCI during in the year:
For the year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Income tax effect 1.40 0.66
Total 1.40 0.66
Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for the year ended:

For the year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Accounting profit before tax 28.80 33.07
At India’s statutory income tax rate of 31 March 2023: 25.168% (31 March 2022: 25. 168%) 725 8.32
Non deductible expenses/(Income) 7.62 L.46
Tax expense relating to earlier years 1.30 (6.91)
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 16.17 2.87

23 Deferred taxes
Asat

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Items leading to creation of deferred tax assets

Disallowances on provision for expenses 4.11 2543
Employee benefits 15.72 17.57
Provision for doubtful debts and advances 15.18 9.55
Property, plant and equipment 1.29 071
Lease assets as per Ind AS 116 342 1.33
Net deferred tax assets 39.72 54,59

1 The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right 1o set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax
assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority. In addition, the Company has an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the
deferred tax assets and settle the deferred tax liabilities simultaneously.

2 In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets

ultimate realisation of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which the temporary differences become
deductible, Management considers the projected i i i
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24 Components of Other Comprehensive Income (OCT)
The disaggregation of changes in uther comprehensive income by cach e of Lquity is shown below:
Retained earnings
For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Actuarial gains / (losses) un change in actuarial assumptions (5.55) (2.62)
Incorne tux charged 1o other comprehensive income 1.40 0.66
Tatal (4.15) (1.96)

25 Earnings per share

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the vear atinbutable to equity holders of the Company, by the weiphted average number of Equity shares
outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are caleulated by dividing the profit for the vear attributable to equity holders of the Company, ty the weignted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be 1ssued on conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares into equity

shares
The fullowing reflects the i and share duta wied in the basic snd diivied EPS computaticns:
For the year ended

21 March 2023 31 Murch 2022
Profit attributabie to equity shareholders of the Company 12.63 30.20
Warehted average number ol equity shares used for computing Eaming per Share (Basic) 2,i7,020 217020
Wesghted sverage nurnber of equity shares used for compunng Eaming per Share (Diluted) 217,026 2.17.020
Busic EPS (Nominal vaiue: INR 10 per share; 5.82 1302
Diluted EPS (Numinnl value: INR 10 per share) 582 1392

| Earnings per share (EPS) calcuiation i3 in accordance with Ind-AS 23 - Barning Per Share.

]

Weighted average niimber of shares is the number of cquity shares cutsisnding at the beginning of the vear ndjusied by the number of equity shares issued during year,

multiplied by the time weightinz factor. The time wenghting factor 15 the number of days for which the specific shares are owtstanding as & proportion of fotal number of
days during the year

3 The management has anted (o make a disclosurs of Anti-dilutive Exinings pey share (EPS).

(This space has been tmicndtonally left blank)
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26 Graltuity and other post- employment benefits plan

(a) Defined contribution plan

The Company makes contributions to Defined Contribution Plans for qualifying employees. Provident Fund, labour welfare fund Benefits are unfunded in nature and
Leave Encashment is unfunded in nature, Under the Provident Fund, Leave Encashment Schemes and labour welfare fund, employees are entitled to recerve lump sum
benefits. The Company also contributes to Employees’ State insurance

The provident fund and the state defined contribution plan are operated by the Regionul Provident Fund Commissioner. Under the schemes, the Company is required to
contribute a specified percentage of payroll cost to the retirement benefit / schemes to fund the benefits.

The Company has recognised the following amounts as expense in the financial statements for the year ended:

For the year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Contribution to Provident Fund 5476 50.35
Contribution to Employees State Insurance 12,08 1242
Total 66.84 62,77
(b) Defined benefits plan

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan in India (non-funded), The Company’s defined benefit gratuity plan is a final salary plan for India employees, which
requires contributions to be made to a separately administered fund. The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, Under the act, employee who
has completed five years of service is entitled to specific benefit. The level of benefits provided depends on the member’s length of service and salary at retirement age

Statement of profit & loss account
Net employee benefit expense recognised in employee cost:

For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Current service cost 811 6.00
Interest cost on defined obligation 1.16 0.78
9227 6.78
Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income:
For the year ended
21 March 2023 31 March 2022
Actugrial gains/ (losses) on change in financial assumptions (1.13) 041
Actuarial gains / (losses) on experience variance (4.71) (3.03)
Actuanal gains / (|losses) on change in demographic assumptions 0.29 -
Actuarinl gnins/ (losses) on change in assumptions {5.55) (2.62)
Balance sheet
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:
As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Opening defined benefit obligation 19.39 13.82
Current service cost 811 6.00
Interest Cost / {Income) on the Defined Benefit Liability / (Asset) 1.158 0.78
Benefits paid directly by employer (2.42) (3.83)
Actuarial (gains) / losses on change in assumptions 5.55 252
Closing defined benefit obligation (A) 3179 19.39
Current Portion 3.63 0.04
Non - Current Portion 28.16 19,35
The Expected contribution to the defined benefit plan in future years:
As at
31 Murch 2023 31 March 2022
Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting year) 3.63 0.04
Between 2 and 5 years 4999 11.43
Between 3 and 10 years 4051 14.00
Beyand 10 years 4149 16.10
135.62 41.57

(This space has been intennionally left blank)
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The cconomic and demographic mptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the Company’s plans are shown below:
Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Discount rate 7.18% 6.01%
Expecled rute of return on assets - -
Expected rate of salary increase 7.00% 5.00%
Retirement Age (In years) 58 58
Employee turnover -
- Far ages of 25 years and below 15% 30%
- For ages betwesn 26 years to 35 years 25% 20%
- For ages between 36 years to 45 years 25% 25%
- For ages betwesn 46 years to 55 years 10% 15%
- For ages above 56 years 0% 1%
: 100% of 1ALM 100% of IALM
isiloale i (2012- 14) (2012-14)

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and
demand in the employment market,

The overall expected rate of return on assets is determined based on the market prices prevailing on that date, applicable to the year over which the obligation is to be
settled.

The impact of sensitivity analysis due to changes in the significant actuanial assumptions on the defined benefit obligations is given in below table:

Change in Asat

assumptions 31 March 2023 31 Mareh 2022
[Mscount rate +1% change (1.38) (0.96)

- 1% change 1.45 L01
Expecled rate of salary increase +1% change 1.45 1.01

-1% change (1.39) 0,98
Expected rate of employee turnover +1% change (1.15) 0.70

-1% change 1.18 0.68

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligatiun us & resull of reasonable changes in
key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting year.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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27 Leases

The Company has adopted Ind AS 116 "Leases" from 01 April 2019, which resulted in changes in accounting policies in the financial statements,

The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities is 9.40%.with maturity between 2021-2026. Fallowiny are the changes in the carrying value
of right of use assets for the year ended 31 March 2023 and year ended 31 March 2022:

Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Opiening balance 165.87 11.68
Additions (refer note 4) - 177.30
Deletion (refer note 4) - (8.26)
Depreciation expense (refer note 19) (19.69) (14.85)
Closing balance 146.18 165.87

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities (included under interest-bearing loans and horrowings) and the movements during the year:

Asat

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Opening balance 171.13 12.79
Additions - 177.30
Deletion - (9.04)
Accretion of interest (refer note 20) 15.60 10.00
Paymenis (27.00) (19.92)
Closing balance 159.73 171.13
Current 12.52 11.40
Non-current 147.21 159.73
The following are the amounts recognised in Profit or Loss: (T in Lacs)

For the year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Diepreciation expense of right-of-use assets (refer note 19) 19.69 14.85
Interest expense on lease liabilities (refer note 20) 15.60 10.00
Expense reloting 10 Long-term lenses {included in other expenses) {27.00) (19.92)
Total amount recognised in Profit or Loss 8.29 4.93

The Company has @ lease contract that include extension and termination options. These options are negotiated by management to provide flexibility in managing the
leased-asset portfolio and align with the Company business needs, Management exercises significant judgement in determining whether these extension and termination
aptions are reasonably certain o be exercised. Set out below are the undiscounted potential future rental payments relating to years following the exercise date of
extension and termination options that are not included in the lease term:

For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Extension options expected not to be exercised

Within five years 14641 141.97

More than five years 78.95 110.38
Termination options expected to be exercised

Within five years . .

More than five years R -
‘Total 225.36 252.35

The company daes not fuce & significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current assets are sufficient to meet the obligations related to lease
liabilities as and when they fall due. Rental expense recorded for short-term leases 31 March 2023 % Nil (31 March 2022 ¥ Nil) The aggregate depreciation on ROU
assets has been included under depreciation and amortisation expense in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss,

The Company has applied practical expedient ini Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS 116) notified vide Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules,

2020 by Ministry on July 24, 2020 to all rent concessions received as a direct consequence of COVID-19 pandemic. Accordingly, the Company has recognized an
amount of # Nil (31 March 2022 % Nil) for the vear ended 31 March 2023 in income statement.

(This space has been tmtentionally left blank)
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28

B. Related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year

Statement of cash flows (increase/(decrease)

For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Impact on profit and loss

Depreciation on nght-of-use assets

Interest Cost

Cash genernted from/(used in) operations (A)

Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities
Payment of Interest on lease lizbilities
Net cash Mlows from financing activities (B)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents during the year (A+B)

There is no material impact on other comprehensive income or the basic and diluted earnings per share.

Related party disclosure

Numes of related parties and related party relationship

(8.29) (4.93)
19.69 14,85
15.60 10.00
27.00 19.92

(11.40) (9.92)

(15.60) (10,00)

{27.00) (19.92)

Related parties where control exists

Ultimate holding company

Halding company

Fellow subsidiary company

Key Management Personnel (KMP) & Directors

CarTrade Tech Limited
(Formerly known as MXC Solutions India Private Limited)

Shriram Automall India Limited

CurTradeExchange Solutions Private Limited
Augen Assel Managemen! Private Limited

Ms. Jyotl Jain, Chief Executive Officer
Mr Venkata Sudhakar Jampalla, Director
Mr. Bhaskar Ghosh, Direcior

Mr. Kalyan Kumar Malla, Director

Mr. Sunil Dhawan, Directo:

Holding company
Fellow subsidiary compuny

Key Manngement Personnel (KMP) & Directors

Shriram Automall India Liaited
CarTradeExchange Solutions Private Limited

Ms. Jyoti Jain, Chiefl Executive Officer
Mr. Bhaskar Ghosh, Director

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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C. Related party Transactions for the year ended

(T in Lacs)
Shriram Automall India Limited CarTradeexchange Solutions Key managerial remuneration
Private Limited
31 March 2023| 31 March 2022] 31 March 2023] 31 March 2022| 31 March 2023] 31 March 2022
Income
Revenue from contracts with customers 97,65 51.60 89,79 96.06 - -
Other income
Service business income 25818 22371 7.52 - - -
Expenses
Manggerial Remuneration™ - . - 90.24 54.42
Other expenses 5740 50.90 - - - -
Finance cost 275 27.15 - - - -
Other Transactions
Loan given
Loan / ICD taken 399.49 761.72 - - - -
Loan / ICD repaid 473,57 855.00 - 7.00 - -

*Note 1 : Total employee stock compensafion expense for the year e
respectively also, payment towards Employees Stock Option buy back

during the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March

nded 31 March 2023 and 3] March 2022, includes a cha
2022 of ¥ 37.12 lacs and INHl respectively,

*Note 2: Does not include post-employment benefit based on actuarial valuarion as this is done for the Company as a whole.

D. Balance as at end of the year

rge of T 0.66 lacs and & 1.72 lacs

(T in Lacs)
Shriram Automall India Limited CarTradeexchange Solutions Key managerial remuneration
Private Limited
31 March 2023| 31 March 2022] 31 March 2023 31 March 2022| 31 March 2023] 31 March 2022
Receivahle
Trade receivable 16.07 91.60 10,03 1141 - -
Contract assets 0.59 19.70 0.06 -
Payable
Unsecured loan 21793 292.01 - - - -
Interest on loan 1.21 234 - - - -
Trade payables 811 20,01 - - - -

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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29 Ratio analysis

Particular Numerator Densminator For the year ended| For the year ended| % Change from March 31,
31 March 2023 31 March 2022 2022 to March 31,2023

Current Ratio Current Assets Current Liahilities 1.32 1.30 1.24%
Debt equity ratio TomiDes [Barmewingshlents (o bt Bailty 0.98 1.07 -8,00%

Liability)

Net Profit after taxes + Non-cash

operating expenses like
Debt service coverage ratio |depreciation and other Interest & Lease Payments 023 010 131.92%
ol amortizations + Interest + other |+ Principal Repayments - ) ‘

adjustments like loss on sale of

Fixed assets
Retum on equity ratio o! Net Profits after taxes 'Eqvﬁ:?fe Shareholders 0.03 0.07 -57.58%
Inventary turnover ratio Revenue from operation Average [nventory NA NA NA
Tn_adv.- receivable tumover Revenue from operation Aver:laga Accounts 6.44 625 3.07%
ratio Receivable
Trade payable turnover ratio |Other expenses Average Trade Payables 461 4.15 11.07%
Net capilal tumnover ratio ~ |Revenue from operation Working Capital 1134 733 54.59%
Net Profit Ratio *' Met Profit after taxes Revenue from operation 001 .02 -66.55%

Tangible Net Worth + Total
Return on capital employed |Earning before interest and taxes | Debt + Deferred Tax 0.16 014 18.08%
| Liability

Interest Income on fixed deposits E“mmI :nvcsi:ments :—Non

and debentures + Profit on sale Olu:en ba:}:r::;“ems i
Return an investments of investments + Profit on fair - = it B | NA NA NA

valuation of investments cartied |~ PO £ nng‘:nn 12

at FVTPL maturity of more than |

i months 1

Reason of variances more than 25%
*' Change is majorly due to reduction in net profits of the company during the current financial year 2022-23
* Change is majorly due to increase in revenue from aperation during the current financial year 2022-23,

30 Other Stututory Information
(1) The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benumi property
(i) The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck ofT,
(i1} The Company da not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory year.
(iv) The Compuny have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year
{v) The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entityfies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that
the Intermediary shall:
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries
(vi) The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in
writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (1Jiimate Seneficiaries) or
(b} provide any guarantee, security or the like on behall’ of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,
{vii) The Company have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or discloscd as income during the yzar in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 191
(viii) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution of government or any government auhority.

(s space has been intennionatly lefi blank)
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A

Finnncial Instruments:- Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s principal financial labilives, comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables . The main purpose of these financial liabifities 15 to finance the
Company's operations. The Company's principal financial assets include investments in equity shares and government securitics, advances to related party, trade and
ather receivables, security deposits, cash and short-term deposits thet derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity nsk. The Company's senior management oversees the management of these risks and advises on
financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framewaork for the Company. The hoard provides assurance (o the sharehelders that the Company's financial
nsk activities are governed by appropnate policies and procedures and that financial nsks are idennfied, measured and managed in accordance with the Company's
policies and risk objectives. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below

Market Risk

Market risk 1s the nisk that the fair value of fuiure cash flows of 4 financial mstrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Markes nsk compnses three
ypes of nisk:-

a) Interest rate risk,

by) currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and

¢) commodity risk.

Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, investments, deposits, advances and derivative tinancial instruments.

The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate to the position as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022,

The sensitivity analyses have been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt, the ratio of floating to fixed interest rates of the debt and derivatives and the
proportion of finencial instruments in foreign currencies are all constant in place at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022,

The analyses exclude the impact of movements in market variables on: the carrving values of gratity and other post-retirement obligations; provisions. The sensitivity of
the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective markel risks,

(This space has beea intentionally: ieft bloank)
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32

Credit Risk

Credit risk 1s the risk that counterparty will not meel its obligations under a financial mstrument or customer contract, leading 1o 4 financial loss. The Company is not
exposed to any significant credit risk from its operating activities (primanily trade receivables), inoluding deposits with banks and financial institutions, fareign exchange
transactions and other financial instruments For detail ngeing of trade receivable rafar note 5.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the abligations associated with its financial liabilitics that are scttled by delivering cash or
another financial asset. The Company's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank overdrafis. and bank
loans. The Company's approach to managing liquidity 1o ensure , as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liability when they are due, under hath
normal and stressed conditions, without incurming unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company's reputation. The C ompany closely monitors its liguidity
position and deploys a robust cash management system. The Company manages liguidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, borrowing liabilities, by continuously
monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, profile of financia! assets and liabilities. [t maintain adequate sources of fnancing including loans from banks at an aptimised
cost. The table below provides the details regarding contractual maturities of financial liabilities.

Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
On Demand
- Borrowings 217.93 292,61
217.93 292,04
Less than 1 year
- Borrowings - -
- Trade payables 26550 15044
- Lease liabilities 12,52 11.40
= Other financial liahilitics 17.54 46,19
325.96 409.03
More than 1 year nnd less than S years
- Borrowings - -
- Lease liability 133.89 130.57
- Other financial liabilities - -
133,89 130.57
More than 5 years
- Borrowings - =
- Lease liabnlity 7495 110.38
- Other financial labitities - -
78,95 110,38

Capital management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and all other equity reserves atibutable to the equity holders of the
Company. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise the shareholder value.

The Company seeks to maintain a balance between the higher returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings aud the advantages and secunty afforded
by a sound capital position. The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to maximise the shareholder value

The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company measures underlying ner debt as total
liabilities, comprising interest bearing loans and borrowings, excluding any dues to subsidiaries or Company compaiies less cash and cash equivalents, For the purpose

of capital management, total capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other reserves attributable to the equity Lolders of the Company, as applicable.

Company's adjusted net debt to equity ratio as at:

v . Asat
Coning Rack) 31 March2023 31 March 2022

Borrowings (Including current matunties) -

Lease linbilities (refer note 27) 159.73 17113
Less' cash and cash equivalents (refer note 6) {52.85) (46.72)
Adljusted Net deht (A) 106.88 124.41
Equity 385,16 43454
Total equity (B) 385.16 434.54
Total equity and net debt |[C= (A+B)] 492.04 558.95
Gearing Ratio (A/C) 21.72% 22.26%

In order 10 achieve this overall objective, the Company's capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants antached 1o the
interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately czll
Ioans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenarits of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current year.
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33 Fair Values
The Carrying values of financial instruments by categories is as under:

Particulars 31 March 2023
Amortized Cost FVTPL FYTOCI

Assels

Non current financial assets

- Investments 2 =
- Loans - -
- Other financial assets 223 = =

Current Financial assets

- Trade recervables 307 68 - -
- Loans -
- Investments - . -
= Other financial assets 1€4.08 - -
- Cash and cash equivalents 52.85 - -

Non Current Financial liabilities

- Borrowings - :
- Lease liabilities 147.21 - -
- Other financial liabilities -

Current Financial liabilities

- Borrowings 217.93 -
- Lease habilities 12.52 - -
- Trade payables 29590 - -
- Other financial ligbilities 17.54 . =

Particulars 31 March 2022
Amortized Cost FYTPL IVTOCI

Assets

Non current financial assets
- Investments -
- Loens - -
- Other financial assets 308 £

Current Financial assets

- Trade receivables 336,54 - -
- l.nans - -
- Investments - - -
- Other financial assets 180,99 -
- Cash and cash equivalents 46,72 -

Non Current Financial liahilities

- Borrowings - -
- Leuse habilities 15973 - -
- Other financial liabilities -

Current Financinl libilities

- Borrowings 292.00 - =
- Lease liabilities 11.40 - -
- Trade payables 35144 - -
- Other financial liabilities 46.19 = -

The following assumptions/ methods were used to estimnte the fair values:

i) The fair values of trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other current financial assets, trade payable and othar current finuncial liabilities are corsidered (o be
same as their carrying values due 1o their short term nature.

il)  Fair value of quoted financial instruments is based on quoted market price at the reporting dute,

ili) The carrying amount of other items carried at amortized cost are reasonable approximation of their fuir value.

iv) The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount a: which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The fair values of the quoted notes and bonds are hased on price quotations at the reporting dute,

(Thes space has heen interitionally lep blany)
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Fair value hierarchy

All financial instruments for which fair value 15 recognised or disclosed are categorised within the Fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole

Level ' quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for [dentical assets or labilities

Level 2. valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that has a significant effect on the fair value measurement are observable, either di rectly ar indirectly.
Level 3: valuation techniques for which the lowest level input which has u significant effect on the fair value measurement is not based on observable market data

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company's assets and liabilities:

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at 31 March 2023:

Fuir value measurement using

Significant

Quoted prices in Significant
active markets observable inputs uno;s;::blc
1
{Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

Assets measured at fair value:
Mutual Funds ; - 2
Non-converthle debentures - - o

Liability measured at fair value
Other financial lisbilities - =

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at 31 March 2022:

Fair value measurement using

Quoted prices in Significant Significant
i unobservable

active markets observable inputs b
v g ILcI:eI3}

Assets measured at fair value:
Mutual Funds = : .
Non-convertible debentures = . .

Liability measured at fair value
Other financial liabilities . * &

34 Segment reporting
Ind AS 108 establishes standards for the way that companies report information about operating segments end related disclosures about products and services and major
customers. The Company's operations pre-dominantly relate to inspection & valuation of old trucks and commercial vehicles befire their auction, The Chief Operating
Decision Maker (CODM) evaluates the Company's performance and allocates resources bused on analysis of various performance indicators pertaining 1o business as 2
single segment. Accordingly, the amounts appearing in the financial stalements relate to the Company’s single business segment

35 Dues to Micro, small and medium enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

The principal amount and the interest due thereon (1o be shown separately) remaining unpaid to any
supplier as at the end of each accounting year

- Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises 3498 -
- Imterest due on above

34.98 -

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act 2006 along with - =
amounts of payment made to supplier beyond the appointed day during ezch accounting year

The amount of interest dus and payable for the vear of delay in making payment (which have been
paid but beyond the appointed day during the year ) but without adding the interest specified under the
MSMED Act 2006 "

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date

when the inlerest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of
disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006

(This space kas heen infentonally lefi biank)
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(% in Lacs)
36 Capital and other commitments
As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Capital commitment (net of advance) 258 6.87
For commitment relating to lease arrangement, please refer note 27
37 Contingent linbilities )
As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Income Tax (refer note (i) & (1a) below) .65 0.65

(i) The Company has received demands u/s 201(1)/201(1A) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 aggregating to T 0.65 lacs (31 March 2022 Nil) on eccount of interest on TDS on

provision for expenses during the FY 2017-18, FY 2018-19 and FY 2019-20 as reported in the Tax Audit Report of respective assessment years. The Company has
however disallowed the said expenses w/s 40(a)(ia) while calculating the income tax for respective financial years. The Company has filed an appeal before CIT(A)
against said orders received w's 201(1)/201(1A) of the Income Tax Act, 1961, The management is confident of favourable outcome in Appeal.

(ia) The Company received intimation w/s 143(1) from the Income Tax Authorities requiring the Company to pay additional tax of Nil (31 March 2022 20.65 lacs) for

38
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assessment year 2020-21 and the same was adjusted against the refund of the said assessment year. The department is of the view that income tax rate should have been
charged (@ 25% instead of 22% (under section 115 BAA) for AY 2020-21. Although the form 101C has been filed within the extended due date via notification no.
173/32/2022-ITA-1, The Company has filed a rectification /s 154 of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and order was passed in favour of the Company during the year ended
31 March 2023 and refund was made to the Company.

There are numerous interpretative issues relating to the Supreme Court (SC) judgement on PF dated 28th February, 2019. As a matter of caution, the company has made
a provision on a prospective basis from the date of the SC order. The company will update its provision, on receiving further clarity on the subject.

The Code on Social Security, 2020 (*Code’) relating to employee henefits during employment and post-employment benefits received Presidential assent in September
2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of Indin. However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has not been notified and the final
rules/interpretation have not yet been issued. The Company will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will record any related impact in the period
the Code becomes effective.

In 2018 , the holding company instituted the ESOP Scheme 2018 (the ESOP 2018). Under the ESOP plan the committee may grant awards of equity based stock option
being growth options to the employees of holding company and its subsidiaries. As per the Indian accounting standards ( Ind AS) 102" share based payments, the
company receiving the services shall measure the services received as an equity settled transaction and required to record compensation cost and disclose information
relating to the shares granted to the employees of the company, under the above plan since , the plan is assessed , managed and administered by the holding company ,
the company has taken stock options cost pertains to option granted to the employee of the company as calculated by the holding company under Ind AS 102. The Board
of Directors of holding company have approved the buy-back of 25% of vested employee stock options (“ESOPs") (i.e. 9,748 shares) at a price of ¥600.00 per share
during the year ended 31 March 2023, for a total consideration of T 58.49 |acs and accordingly the Company has completed the buyback process in accordance with the
requirements of Section 68 of the Companies Act, 2013

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date
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